
AGENDA
Committee - GREATER THETFORD 

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 
COMMUNITY SUB-GROUP

Date & Time - WEDNESDAY, 21ST NOVEMBER, 
2018 AT 7.00 PM

Venue - GUILDHALL COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
MARKET PLACE, THETFORD

Public Document Pack



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
Wednesday, 21st November, 2018

Page(s)
herewith

1. AGENDA 3

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 19 SEPTEMBER 4 - 6

3. CHAIRMANS NOTES 7 - 8

4. SUE/TEP AND WATERSPACE UPDATE 9 - 10



GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting
Wednesday 21st November 2018, 7–9pm,

Guildhall Council Chamber, Market Place, Thetford

Agenda
1. Welcome & Introductions

2. Approval of Minutes
Approval of the minutes from the previous Sub-Group meeting of 16th May.

3. Announcements & Matters Arising
Announcements from the Chair; Matters arising from the minutes not covered in another item.

4. Sustainable Urban Expansion, Thetford Enterprise Park, and Waterspace Updates
See separate paper for details.

5. Public Questions
Up to 15 minutes for questions and comments from members of the public.

6. 2019 Meeting Dates
To discuss and agree Sub-Group meeting dates and proposed venues for 2019.

7. Items to Note
Other items of public interest, which there will not necessarily be time to discuss at this meeting.

(a) The Norfolk and Waveney Sustainability and Transformation Partnership is currently con-
ducting a review of Adult Mental Health Services. The public can submit their views until
Friday 23rd November. Full details at https://bit.ly/2FhJHwj .

(b) As part of its 2019/20 budget, Norfolk County Council is consulting on proposed changes
to Adult Social Care charging, Norfolk Record Office service reductions, and Council Tax
increases. The public can comment until 23rd December. See https://bit.ly/2Qga2Md .

(c) The Town Council is seeking permission to install bollards and gates to prevent unautho-
rised vehicular access to Melford Common and Barnham Cross Common. The public can
comment on the application until 30th November. See https://bit.ly/2FglWER .

8. Any Other Business

9. Meeting Summary

Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate at the meeting. In addition to the time
for public questions, members of the public have the opportunity to contribute during the remainder of
the meeting at the invitation of the Chair. Further details and meeting papers are available online at
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup. Minutes and papers are also available at the Town
Council Offices in King’s House and at Leaping Hare on King Street.

3

Agenda Item 1

https://bit.ly/2FhJHwj
https://bit.ly/2Qga2Md
https://bit.ly/2FglWER
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup


 

Page 1  

  

 MINUTES               19 September 2018  

 Greater Thetford Development Partnership                           19:00hrs 

                    Community Sub-Group  

  

Chair:  Mr Robert Whittaker (RW)                         Minutes          Doug Stephen  

Attendees:  Sub-Group Members ; Brenda Canham (BC), Andy Cruse (AC), David 

Dawson (DD) (Substitute for Rae Herries), Doug Stephen (DS)  

 13 Members of the public (MOP) 

  Apologies        Rae Herries, Diana Goucher, Mike Brown 

  

1. Introductions    

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained the purpose of the 

Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board and the sub-group.  Members 

introduced themselves.  

It was noted that Breckland District Council (BDC) had withdrawn the secretarial support 

that they had previously provided to the Sub-Group. There was therefore had no minute-

taker and Breckland had also not provided any papers for members of the public. RW 

provided copies of the papers and DS agreed to take the minutes. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting of 16th May were agreed with one amendment to clarify that 

the MOP's comment about bus use of highways in 24/18 was related to a planning 

requirement, rather than just a desire for bus services. Although not a change to the 

minutes AC pointed out that the he had subsequently sort clarification on the Croxton 

survey numbers reported under 26/18(b). While overall the majority were against moving 

the boundary (as correctly reported in the minutes), of the respondents from the village 

itself a majority were in favour of the boundary being moved. 

3. Announcements & Matters Arising 

RW summarised previous GTDP Board discussions. He also stated that he would not be 

standing to continue as an independent member of the GTDP Community Sub-Group. 

A MOP (Michelle Bibby; a facilitator for Breckland Youth Advisory Board) asked if there    

could be more youth participation in the work of the sub-group. RW said he was 

disappointed that the advert for the new independent members, which had been drawn up 

by Breckland, included an 18+ age requirement. He had provided feedback on a draft 

suggesting a lower age limit, but this has not resulted in it being changed. DS pointed out 

that at the sub-group meeting in September 2017 it was stated that TTC had started work 

on establishing a Youth Council and that it was the sub-group’s intention to invite a 

representative to attend their meetings. BC advised that the Youth Council was not 

currently active, as the original members were now over 18, and replacement members 

had not been found. The sub-group decided that it would be beneficial to have youth 

4

Agenda Item 2



 

Page 2  

  

participation and invited Michelle Bibby to bring a local youth representative from the 

Youth Advisory Board to the next meeting. 

The small size of ‘Public Spaces Protection Order’ (PSPO) signs in Thetford had been 

previously raised and RW had forwarded the concerns to the Safer Thetford Action Group 

(STAG). A MOP commented that not only were the signs too small but that some 

appeared to have been rotated/moved by vandals, as had some cycle route signs. The 

same MOP also commented that there appeared to be no action from police to enforce 

the PSPO. 

RW stated that he thought BDC were trying to find alternative land for allotments so that 

some of the Mundford Road allotments could be used to provide additional parking north 

of the railway station. Any such land would have to be acceptable to Thetford Town 

Council (TTC). BC stated that BDC had not offered any suitable alternative land and 

suggested that closer consultation was needed between BDC and TTC. 

 4. SUE, TEP and Waterspace Updates 

RW stated that work had started on the first phase of the SUE and on the roundabout to 

provide access to the TEP. 

 AC stated that in his opinion, if the Community Governance Review (Thetford Boundary 

Change) resulted in the boundary being moved as per the application so that none of the 

SUE lay within Croxton parish, then the Croxton and Brettenham and Kilverstone Joint 

Neighbourhood Plan would be invalidated. DS did not agree, saying that the plan would 

still apply to the areas remaining with the three parishes. 

A MOP said that the arrangements for voting on the third consultation for the Community 

Governance Review excluded many Thetford residents as it required a valid email 

address and the language used was overly complicated, which made it difficult to 

understand for many people particularly immigrant residents for whom English is a 

second language. 

Several MOPs raised concerns about the change in course of the river Thet upstream of 

Nuns bridges. This has resulted in most of its flow bypassing the old river course from 

there to below Butten Island. This has resulted in low levels of water and/or sluggish flows 

and a number of fish have died. A summary of the Environment Agency’s investigation 

into the situation was shown to the sub-group. The report indicated that the situation could 

be remedied but did not indicate a willingness to instigate action which would require TTC 

agreement. BC will raise the matter with TTC. 

5. Public Questions 

No additional questions were asked under this item. 

6. Items for Discussion 

RW explained that the recruitment process for independent members of the sub-group  

was ongoing and that applications closed on 1st October. 

5



 

Page 3  

  

The lack of administrative support of the sub-group by BDC was noted. BC agreed to 

approach BDC for financial support to provide for minute taking and document production. 

A MOP (Clare Higson) volunteered to take the minutes at the next meeting. 

7. Items to Note 

The items on the agenda were noted, along with the recently announced consultation by 

Norfolk County Council on the closure of many Children's Centres: 

https://norfolk.citizenspace.com/consultation/childrenscentres-2/ . There was some 

discussion and several MOPs expressed concern about the plans and the effect that they 

would have on the area. A MOP suggested that far too little effort was being made by 

councils in general to provide multi-lingual translations of important documentation. 

8. Any other Business 

An MOP asked if a reported investment of £1.3M by Anglian Water in the area might have 

any effect on the Little Ouse Path. This wasn't known, but is something that should be 

watched. 

9. Meeting Summary 

The Sub-Group was happy for the Chair to produce the Highlights / Summary document. 

 

 Next Meeting; 21 November 2018, 7-9 pm, Thetford Guildhall 

 

6

https://norfolk.citizenspace.com/consultation/childrenscentres-2/


Item 3: Chairman’s Notes
Robert Whittaker

GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 21st November 2018

1 GTDP Board Meetings

The GTDP Board did not meet as it would normally do in October, as a Stakeholder Summit
had been planned instead. However this did not take place either, to avoid a clash with a similar
event for the Cambridge Norwich Tech Corridor. Details of previous GTDP Board meetings can
be found online at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board .

2 Answers and Updates to Public Questions and Concerns

Various issues have been raised by the public at previous Sub-Group meetings, and we have
attempted to investigate and provide updates.

Railway Station Access Issues and Parking. Various issues with the station have been
raised at different Community Sub-Group meetings, including the poor accessibility of
the footbridge and the lack of car parking. The Board wrote to Greater Anglia back in
March, but have yet to make any significant progress with them.

There is a possibility of moving some of the allotments to the north of the station to
make way for extra parking. However, replacement land for the allotments would need to
be found first, as it is a legal requirement to maintain allotments to meet local demand.
Breckland council had been trying to find alternative land, but had not found anything
acceptable to the Town Council (who own and manage the existing allotment) yet.

At the September 2018 meeting, Brenda Canham (Thetford Town Council representative
on the Sub-Group) agreed to find out what the situation was. She reports that Breckland
have not put in any desire for extended car parking at the station at present.

Cost of Purchasing Train Tickets on the Train. At the November 2017 Sub-Group meet-
ing, an issue was raised about passengers being charged more when buying tickets on the
train compared with buying them at the station. In almost all cases, this shouldn’t hap-
pen. The main exception is those travelling with East Midlands Trains, who do not give
railcard discounts on the train if ticketing facilities are available at the station.

The Board wrote to East Midlands Trains about this issue in April, and have got some
positive engagement from the company, but as yet there is nothing definite to report.
Hopefully there will be an update at the next Board meeting.

Health-Care Provision Concern had been expressed at various Community Sub-Group meet-
ings about the lack of planning for expanded health-care provision for the new SUE resi-
dents. There was again nothing further on this at the last Board meeting, but the issues
should be picked up in the forward plan work, and dealt with at a future meeting.

Bus Provision for Kingsfleet (SUE) A member of the public raised a query about Bus
provision for the new houses in the SUE at Sub-Group’s May 2018 meeting, and this
came up again as a correction to the draft minutes at the September 2018 meeting. As
result I looked into the planning policies and provisions currently being made.

1

7

Agenda Item 3

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board


Thetford Area Action Plan policy TH26 requires:

New bus services to the town centre and to the existing employment areas on
Mundford Road and London Road will be in place from the first day of occupation
by a resident in the Thetford Urban Extension.

However, the planning permission currently agreed by Breckland only requires bus routes
to be available (not necessarily in use) at 80% occupancy of Phase 1. (Outline Planning
Conditions 29 and 30.)

Secondly, Thetford Area Action Plan policy TH11 states, in relation to the use of Joe
Blunt’s Lane railway underpass by buses, that:

iv. Buses only operate for school use and for no other purposes;
v. Buses operate in term time only and not at weekends, on bank holidays nor
outside of term times and for a limited time at the start and end of the school
day;

However, it appears that Breckland council have approved transport plans that suggest
regular bus services would later use the underpass throughout the day.

I have asked Breckland’s planning department to confirm and explain these apparent
discrepancies. (The first on 10th October and the second on 5th November.) Despite
requesting a response by 8th November so I could include details here, I have yet to
receive answers to the specific questions that I asked.

3 Community Sub-Group Independent Member Recruitment

Over the summer, applicants were invited for the four Independent Member positions on the
GTDP Community Sub-Group. The application deadline was Monday 1st October, and Breck-
land Council is handling the administrative side of the process. A panel comprising the GTDP
Board Chair (currently Cllr Sam Chapman-Allen) along with the town and parish reps on the
Sub-Group will be making the selections, and the process may include interviewing short-listed
candidates.

At time of writing, then panel has not yet met to discuss the applications, but Breckland will
shortly be making arrangements for this to happen. Applicants should expect to receive an
update after that. It is not clear to me why the process is taking so long, as I had expected that
the new independent members would be in place for this meeting.

4 Community Sub-Group Cycling and Walking Report

The Sub Group’s Cycling and Walking report got a positive response from the Board at
its last meeting in June. The full report is available online at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/

cycling-walking. The Board wanted to the relevant council officers to look at the recom-
mendations in more detail before considering actions, and it was requested that I meet with the
Officers to discuss things further. I have not heard anything more about this yet, and the draft
minutes from the meeting suggested that the officers would look at the report on their own. I
asked for an update on progress for the last Sub-Group meeting, and again for this meeting, but
have not received anything. I am told that there will be an update for the next Board meeting
on 27th November.

2

8

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking


Item 4: SUE, TEP and
Waterspace Updates

GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 21st November 2018

1 SUE Phase 1A Progress

Construction work started in October on the first new houses on the Sustainable Urban Expan-
sion (SUE) — also known as Kingsfleet. Phase 1A is being built by Hopkins Homes, on land
inside the A11 between the A1075 Norwich Road and the Railway. Further information about
the development can be found at https://bit.ly/2PXy95z .

2 Community Governance Review (Thetford Boundary Change)

At the request of Thetford Town Council, Breckland District Council is currently running a
Community Governance Review to consider changing the boundary of the Parish of Thetford
so that it incorporates the whole of the new development to the north of the town.

Three stages of public consultation have now been completed. The most recent ran from 20th
August to 28th September and gave people the opportunity to comment the new proposal to
extend the town boundary just into Croxton parish, the addition of a new two-councillor ward
for Thetford Town Council, what that new ward should be called.

The Community Governance Sub-Committee met on 19th October to consider the responses
to the third consultation. A total of 99 responses had been received. Of these, 86 were in
favour of adding a new ward with two additional councillors, and 67 agreed with the boundary
change proposals. The committee agreed to recommend the proposed changes to the full council.
Suggested names for the new ward were varied, but 47 people suggested “Saxon”, probably as a
result of encouragement from some local residents. The committee was divided over the name,
as there had been a previous Thetford ward called “Saxon”, which could potentially result in
confusion. It was eventually agreed to propose “New Saxon” as the ward name.

The proposals will now go forward to a full meeting of Breckland Council for a final decision.

Further background information and details of the earlier consultation rounds can be found at
https://bit.ly/2RQXBqK.

3 TEP Roundabout

Construction work is continuing on the new roundabout on the A1066 Mundford Road, which
will provide access to the Thetford Enterprise Park (TEP) site (to occupy the land between the
A11, and Brunel Way. The roundabout should be completed by early to mid December. Further
details can be found at https://bit.ly/2zN5INy.

Norfolk County Council say that the project cost is £1.5M. Funds allocated to the project include
£1.98M from the Local Enterprise Partnership (which was originally intended for sustainable
transport projects in Thetford) and £450k allocated by Norfolk County Council from their
‘Pooled Business Rates’. Any excess funding left over from the Roundabout should be available
for sustainable transport projects in or around Thetford, such as those recommended by the
Sub-Group’s Cycling and Walking report (http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking).

1

9

Agenda Item 4

https://bit.ly/2PXy95z
https://bit.ly/2RQXBqK
https://bit.ly/2zN5INy
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking


4 River Thet Re-Routing

Erosion of the river bank at Ford Meadow during Summer 2018 has resulted in the main flow
of the River Thet being diverted from its historic course under the Coffee Mill. The main flow
now follows what was a smaller drainage channel. This passes under the middle bridge of Nuns’
Bridges, before joining the Little Ouse just below the Thetford Pulp Mill Sluice. The old course
between Ford Meadow and the Tricorn bridge by the Riverside development now has a lower
water level, and is almost stagnant with very little flow.

The Environment Agency has responsibility for the river flows, while Thetford Town Council
has responsibility for the banks where the breach occurred. The two organisations are currently
working together to find a solution that will restore the levels and allow fish to move freely
between the Little Ouse and Thet rivers. A feasibility study will be completed after which both
the Environment Agency and the Town Council will discuss the possible actions to be taken.
The council will take the options to the Amenities, Land and Property Committee for discussion
and decision. Depending on the final option and cost, the Town Council hopes to implement it
before the end of March 2019.

A public meeting of interested parties (including many landowners and residents of properties
adjacent to the new and old courses) was held in the Bell Hotel on Thursday 8th November,
hosted by The Thetford River Group. The consensus was that the bank should be repaired, in
order to return the majority of the flow to the old course, and avoid problems of flooding from
the new course. The meeting agreed to support a letter being sent to the Town Council urging
them to take such action as soon as possible in conjunction with the Environment Agency.

For further details see
https://thetford.mathmos.net/developments/waterspace/river-thet-diversion/

2

10

https://thetford.mathmos.net/developments/waterspace/river-thet-diversion/

	Agenda
	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 19 September
	3 Chairmans Notes
	GTDP Board Meetings
	Answers and Updates to Public Questions and Concerns
	Community Sub-Group Independent Member Recruitment
	Community Sub-Group Cycling and Walking Report

	4 SUE/TEP and Waterspace Update
	SUE Phase 1A Progress
	Community Governance Review (Thetford Boundary Change)
	TEP Roundabout
	River Thet Re-Routing


